
Request for Proposals: QUESTIONS RECEIVED AND ANSWERS  

City of Burlington Enterprise Permitting & Inspection Application  

Date Posted: August 28, 2019 

Questions Due: September 9, 2019  

Answers Posted: September 16, 2019 

Proposals Due: September 27, 2019 

 

Questions received are listed in black with answers following in red. 

 

1. Is the City open to a cloud hosted solution?  

Yes  

 

2. How many and what departments/divisions/disciplines are included in this RFQ 

that will be processing applications for permits, licenses, complaints (not tied to 

a permit or license) and annual totals on average over the past few years that 

are in scope for this project?  

 

Please see the attached PermitSummary.xlsx. Please note that the code 

enforcement, historic, planning & zoning, and most Public Works permits are 

now part of a new “Department of Permitting & Inspections” as of July 1, 2019. 

E911 is currently part of the Innovation & Technology Department, and 

stormwater remains associated with the Department of Public Works.  

 

a. Will any other departments wish to automate their permit/license 

processes?  

Possible but unknown at this point 

 

b. Can the City please provide a list of departments/divisions/disciplines, 

application types and annual totals 

         See attached PermitSummary.xlsx  

 

3. The City is interested in migrating your historical records from the legacy 

system(s) (CSDC) to the new platform?  

Yes.  

 

a. What does that data comprise?  

Construction Inspection permits, Zoning Permits, Zoning Appeals, 

Excavation Permits, Business Licenses, Fire Protection Permits, Housing 

Inspections, Code Enforcement Complaints, Certificates of Occupancy, 

Vacant Building Registration, Right-of-Way Encumbrance Permits, State 

Permit Archival, Board and Commission Membership Tracking, Zoning 

Amendment Tracking, E911 Addressing Notification.  

 

In addition to SQL data, there are approx 100,000 filesystem objects; 

consisting of MS office documents, PDFs, and images referenced to 



permits/inspections.  There are additionally, another 75,000 attached 

documents stored in the database. 

 

i. Permit, Inspection, Fees --- More? (Please list all business process 

elements (tables) required for migration)  

The City has 30 years of construction and zoning permits in the 

existing MS SQL database.  

 

ii. What format can the data be provided in?  (SQL?)  

The City needs to have the existing SQL database converted to be 

compatible with your database.   

 

iii. How many separate data sets will there be? 

The current system is a normalized database with several tables. The 

City has in-house expertise that is well-versed with the database 

structure 

 

iv. Will the City ensure the data is clean and a unique identifier across all 

data sets can be used to ensure records are affixed the proper 

location?  

UID’s are native to SQL.  

 

4.      Is the City interested in any integrations? 

a.      Please provide details (i.e. Address Database, GIS, Finance, Contractor 

Licensing, other?)  

GIS, tax assessor, New World Systems. The application must include robust 

Property functionality – address, attributes, types, owners, etc., and 

preferably should include integrations with the elements listed under 

“requirements” in the RFQ. The City may elect to include Outlook calendar 

integration as a requirement in the future RFP. 

  

5.      How will the City wish to handle address, parcel & owner (APO) information? 

a.      Local dataset?   

It is in the existing MS SQL database to be converted.  

 

b.      Other data source?  Please list. 

 

b. Will you wish to have an integrated solution that will provide updates on 

the APO information on a scheduled basis? 

The permitting system will be informed of ownership/address changes 

from another system.  If the solution has an API available, that would be 

preferred 

 

6.      Has the City seen any presentations of products related to this RFQ in the last 

12 months?  

No.  



a.      If yes, what products have you seen? 

 

7.      Has the City had any external guidance on the creation of this RFQ?  

Not directly. The City completed a review of the permitting process with an external 

consultant in 2016 that did inform some thinking related to the RFQ. 

 

8.      Will the City have staff available for this project?  Please provide any details 

regarding.  

Yes. City staff will provide project management support as well as support helping 

prioritize project implementation.   

 

9.      Is this a budgeted project? 

Yes. 

 

a. If so what has been budgeted 

Not sharing at this stage of the RFQ process 

 

10. Cost Proposal is mentioned as a factor for scoring calculations, are we 

required to submit a Cost Proposal with the RFQ response (or would this come later 

at the RFP stage)? 

The City would like to understand the methodology (i.e. cost per user) used to price 

different systems and to secure reasonable cost estimates at this point. The 

requirements listed are not sufficient to ask for anything more than an estimate and 

methodology at this point.  

 

11. If yes, can you confirm the number of named software users as well as the 

number of mobile (field) users?   

 

Currently licensed for 25 concurrent users. More total users exist across City 

departments. 

 

12. Please confirm if we can submit our response via email or not?  If I’m reading it 

correctly, we must submit hard copies in addition to a PDF version on either a 

USB drive with the hard copies or we can email just the pdf version but still must 

mail them copies and if so how many copies? 

As long as you submit an email PDF by the deadline, that is sufficient. 

 

13. Is the City also interested in Planning Application tracking and Code Enforcement 

– or is this just for Building Permits & Inspections.   

Yes – for more than building permits & inspections 

 

14. Does the City have any preference for on premise or hosted solutions?  

City has modest preference for SaaS or cloud-based system but open to on 

premise or hosted solutions at this point.  

 



15. Does the City currently accept online credit card payments and if so what 

solution is used?  

The City accepts credit card payments for a variety of services across the City, 

however currently credit card payment for zoning applications are accepted only 

in person at the office. Allowing a standard online payment function is preferred. 

The City did use Municpay for rental registration bills this year (spring 2019). 

 

16. How many concurrent and named users are anticipated?  

25 concurrent users and 75 named users 

 

17. Would the City consider a comprehensive 100% cloud-based solution designed 

specifically for the public sector that cannot be hosted in City facilities?  

Yes. 

 

18. How will both “cloud” and “on premise” solutions be graded and evaluated 

against the other? 

Cost, reliability, implementation challenges, customer service orientation, 

existing customer feedback, etc. 

 

19. Will the City need off-line inspection capability for remote areas, as part of this 

project or at a later date? If so, how many field inspectors require offline 

inspection capability? 

No. 

 

20. What application is the City currently using for its Electronic Plan Review? Are 

there available APIs for integration? 

 

21. Please identify all required integrations and available APIs. 

No clear answer at this point – would need to discuss during transition to RFP 

process. 

 

22. To understand your fee types, please provide a copy of your current fee 

schedule. 

The City combined components of three departments involved in the permitting 

process into one new department (Department of Permitting & Inspections) 

effective July 1, 2019. While some fee information is posted on various websites, 

it is not currently easy for users/residents to assess online the total fee cost or 

schedule, and the fee is influenced by a variety of factors. Currently, the City has 

over 100 fee codes in the AMANDA system. Streamlining this is part of the 

ongoing continuous improvement process for the new department. 

 

It is possible that an RFQ response could indicate the ability to manage fees 

beyond permitting. 

 

23. What version of ESRI GIS does the City currently use? 

Server 10.7.1, desktops are mostly ArcMap10.6.1 or ArcPro 2.2 



 

24. Did the City evaluate solutions that could meet its requirements through vendor 

demonstrations leading up to the RFP release? If so, what types and names of 

solutions and vendors were evaluated (vendor-hosted and on premise)? 

No. The City did complete a review led by an external consultant in 2016 and 

completed some vendor demos in early 2018, but none related directly to the 

RFP release. 

 

25. Could we also get samples of permit/license applications and forms the City will 

want to incorporate in the new system?  

Yes. 

 

26. How many permits/licenses are processed each year? 

See attached PermitSummary.xlsx 

 

27. What level of detail are you seeking regarding functional and technical 

capabilities? 

Vague question from our perspective, and likely in part a function of hosted vice 

SaaS approach. 

 

28. How many years of data is the city planning on converting from Amanda into the 

new system? 

The current permitting system was installed in 2003, so upward of 15 years. 

Please see attached PermitSummary.xlsx for additional detail. 

 

29. Which departments would be in scope and the number of users per department? 

The Department of Permitting & Inspections with 20 users is the primary user. 

Support from I&T, the Assessor, and the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office or DPW would 

add about 5 additional users. Please see attached UserSummary.xlsx for 

additional detail. 

 

30. The RFQ states the following, "A letter attesting that the respondent has read, 

understands, and followed all procedures is a part of this RFP must be included 

as part of the final submittal." Please confirm if this attestation needs to be 

submitted with the RFQ or if it needs to be submitted in the 2nd phase RFP 

process.  

Yes. This should read “RFQ.” 

 

31. The Agreement Requirements section refers to a Draft Agreement but it seems it 

wasn't provided. Will the City please provide this document?  

Yes – thank you. This is now posted. 

 

32. Can exhibits be included in the electronic version only and not printed for each 

hard copy version?  

Yes. 

 



33. Can sample deliverables be summarized to a roughly 25-page sample rather 

than including the entire deliverable? 

Yes. 

 

 

 

 


